Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus

Y Pwyllgor Amgylchedd a Chynaliadwyedd

Lleoliad: Cynulliad

Ystafell Bwyllgora 3 - Y Senedd Cenedlaethol
Cymru

Dyddiad: National

Dydd lau, 1 Rhagfyr 2011 Assembly for
Wales

iy C7

| gael rhagor o wybodaeth, cysylltwch a:

Virginia Hawkins

Clerc y Pwyllgor

029 2089 8544
ES.comm®@wales.gov.uk

Agenda

1. Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon

2. Ymchwiliad i bolisi ynni a chynllunio yng Nghymru - Tystiolaeth
gan Gymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru ac awdurdodau lleol (13.00
- 15.00)

E&S(4)-11-12 papur 1 - Cymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru
E&S(4)-11-12 papur 2 - Cyngor Sir Powys

Craig Mitchell, Swyddog Polisi, Cymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru

Cyng Graham Brown, Cadeirydd, Grwp Gweithio TAN 8, Cyngor Sir Powys

Alan Southerby, Uwch Reolwr, Rheolaeth Datblygu, Cyngor Sir Powys

Steve Packer, Cynghorydd Prosiectau Arbennigol, Cyngor Sir Powys

Cyng David Lewis, Aelod Cabinet dros Ddatblygu Economaidd & Gwasanaethau
Eiddo, Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Castell-nedd Port Talbot

Geoff White, Pennaeth Cynllunio, Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Castell-nedd Port
Talbot



Eitem 2

Y Pwyllgor Amgylchedd a Chynaliadwyedd

E&S(4)-11-11 papur 1
Ymchwiliad i bolisi ynni a chynllunio yng Nghymru - Tystiolaeth gan
Gymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru

Ymchwiliad i Faterion

Cynllunio ac Ynni

Pwyllgor Materion yr Amgylchedd
a Chynaladwyedd

23" Medi 2011

Tudalen 1 WLGA +CLILC



CYFLWYNIAD

1. Mae Cymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru (WLGA) yn cynrychioli 22 awdurdod
lleol Cymru ac mae awdurdodau’r tri pharc cenedlaethol, y tri gwasanaeth tan
ac achub a’r pedwar heddlu’n aelodau cyswillt.

2. Ei nod yw cynrychioli’r awdurdodau lleol yn 6l fframwaith polisiau sy’n cyd-
fynd a phrif flaenoriaethau ei haelodau. At hynny, mae’n cynnig amrywiaeth
helaeth o wasanaethau sy’n atgyfnerthu byd llywodraeth leol Cymru a’r
cymunedau mae’n eu gwasanaethu.

3. Diau bod rhaid i Gymru fynd ati i alluogi cymunedau i fyw’n gynaladwy, ac
mae’n eglur bod ynni’n rhan hanfodol o’r broses honno o ran
cadernid/diogelwch ynni, datblygu’r economi, lleddfu’r newid hinsoddol a
hwyluso cymdeithas deg. Mae problemau mawr ynglyn a thanwydd tlodi
ledled Cymru ac mae’r rheiny’n waeth fyth yng nghefn gwlad gan fod yno hen
dai heb geudod rhwng eu waliau ac nad oes nwy ar gyfer sustemau gwresogi.
Mae prisiau tanwydd braidd yn gyfnewidiol ac mae’n bosibl na fydd ynni o
ffynonellau allanol ar gael bob amser. Felly, mae’n hanfodol i Gymru ddyfeisio
atebion cadarn fydd yn cwtogi ar garbon ac yn mynd i’r afael a’r gwir
anawsterau sydd gyda ni am fod ynni mor ddrud.

4. | helpuiamlinellu’r cyd-destun eang hwn ar gyfer y rhai sy’n penderfynu ar
faterion o’r fath yn lleol, mae WLGA wedi cydweithio’n agos a Llywodraeth
Cymru i feithrin gwybodaeth a gallu’r cynghorwyr ynglyn a’r materion
cymhleth hyn a’r bygythiadau sylweddol mae cymunedau’n eu hwynebu ledled
Cymru. Trwy Fframwaith Datblygu Cynaladwy WLGA
(http://www.wlga.gov.uk/cymraeg/fframwaith-datblygu-cynaladwy/) rydyn
ni wedi gwneud hynny, yn bennaf. Wrth baratoi’r fframwaith, rydyn ni wedi
ceisio darogan tueddiadau’r dyfodol hefyd o ran materion cymdeithasol,
amgylcheddol ac economaidd er mwyn cyfleu i’r cynghorwyr y sefyllfacedd y
gallai eu cymunedau fod ynddyn nhw yn y pen draw. Rydyn ni wedi cynnwys
yn y disgrifiadau hynny elfennau sy’n effeithio ar iechyd megis tewdra, a
newidiadau yn yr amgylchedd megis y newid hinsoddol, yn ogystal a syniadau
megis byw yn 6l adnoddau un blaned:
(http://www.wlga.gov.uk/cymraeg/futures-masterclass-resources/). Yny
gwaith hwnnw, rydyn ni wedi ceisio galluogi cynghorwyr i ddeall y cyd-destun
ar gyfer eu penderfyniadau bob dydd a gweld sut gall effeithiau graddol
prosesau arwain at rai canlyniadau. Byddwn ni’n parhau i fireinio’r agweddau
hynny am eu bod yn hanfodol i alluogi cynghorwyr lleol i benderfynu’n fwy

Tudalen 2



effeithiol ac y byddan nhw’n helpu i lunio’r ymateb i ddeddfau Llywodraeth
Cymru ynglyn a datblygu cynaladwy yn y dyfodol.

Bydd WLGA yn parhau i fireinio’r adnoddau hynny’n rhan o raglen gyflwyno
ehangach ar gyfer cynghorwyr newydd ar 6l yr etholiadau lleol fis Mai nesaf.
Bydd adnoddau i’w hyfforddi ym maes cynllunio hefyd, fel y byddan nhw’n
effro i r6l aelodau’r pwyllgorau cynllunio a’r penderfyniadau anodd maen
nhw’n eu hwynebu mewn amryw feysydd.

Mae’r pwyllgor (a’i ragflaenwyr) wedi edrych yn fanwl ar drefn cynllunio’r wlad
nifer o weithiau yn ystod tymhorau blaenorol y Cynulliad gan danlinellu rol
hanfodol y drefn honno o ran cynaladwyedd. Yn wir, dyma un o’r egwyddorion
ddylai fod wrth wraidd y drefn yn 6l Deddf ‘Cynllunio a Phrynu Gorfodol’ 2004:
a.39 - (2) Rhaid i’r sawl neu’r corff dan sylw gyflawni’r swyddogaeth gyda’r
nod o helpu i ddatblygu’n gynaladwy.

Mae’r archwiliadau blaenorol wedi dangos pa mor gymhleth yw cyd-destuny
polisiau hefyd, yn ogystal a rél bwysig yr awdurdodau cynllunio lleol ynglyn a
chadw’r ddysgl yn wastad rhwng amryw flaenoriaethau ac uchelgeisiau. Mae’n
amlwg bod cynhyrchu ynni trwy ffynonellau adnewyddadwy yn fater o’r fath.

Mae argymhelliad 9 adroddiad y pwyllgor blaenorol am gynllunio yng Nghymru
(wedi’i gyhoeddi fis lonawr 2011) yn dweud y dylai Llywodraeth Cymru baratoi
canllawiau newydd i’r awdurdodau cynllunio lleol ynglyn a sut mae mireinio
ffiniau’r ardaloedd chwilio strategol er rhagor o gysondeb. Bydd y modd mae
Llywodraeth Cymru yn rhoi’r argymhelliad hwnnw ar waith yn effeithio ar hynt
polisiau ledled y wlad. Felly, mae’n berthnasol i’r ymchwiliad hwn.

Mae’n ymddangos bod ymgysylltu a thrafod lleol ynglyn a materion ynni’n
anodd. Yn hyn o beth, mae menter newydd o’r enw Ynni Cymunedol Cymru o
gymorth ac efallai y bydd yn helpu pobl i ddeall pam mae ynni o ffynonellau
adnewyddadwy’n ystyriaeth bwysig. Gallai hynny leddfu rhai trafodaethau lleol
am gynigion, yn arbennig gan nad yw cynghorwyr lleol sy’n rhan o broses
benderfynu ar faterion cynllunio’n cael dweud llawer am y mater dan sylw cyn
y penderfyniad terfynol, yn 6l y gyfraith. Eto, byddai argymhelliad 18
adroddiad y pwyllgor blaenorol, sy’n sén am gloriannu’r amryw ffyrdd o
ymgysylltu a chymunedau ym mhrosesau awdurdodau cynllunio lleol, yn
berthnasol yma - yn arbennig yn sgil llunio pecyn cymorth ar gyfer asesu
materion ynni yn rhan o’r broses honno.

Tudalen 3



10. Mae’r pecyn yn cynnig dull fydd yn galluogi awdurdodau lleol i hel tystiolaeth
er mwyn asesu faint o ynni adnewyddadwy, is ei garbon, mae modd ei
gynhyrchu yn y fro dan sylw. Gall yr wybodaeth gyfnerthu polisiau ar gyfer
ynni o’r fath yn y cynllun datblygu lleol a hwyluso’r canlynol:

. trafodaethau gydag adeiladwyr ynglyn a gwresogi fesul bro a
chynhyrchu ynni o wastraff;

o nodi posibiliadau cynlluniau newydd ar gyfer cynhyrchu ynni mewn
prosiectau newydd neu gyfredol;

o pwyso a mesur manteision ffermydd gwynt mewn rhai ceisiadau;

. hwyluso trafodaeth gyhoeddus leol am gryfderau a gwendidau

datblygiadau o’r fath.

11. Dyma’r math o ymgysylltu a chymunedau mae’r ddeiseb am TAN 8, sydd
gerbron y pwyllgor, wedi’i grybwyll. Mae’n hanfodol y dylai unrhyw
ddatblygiadau o’r fath fod o les i gymunedau lleol yn ogystal a chyd-fynd a’r
polisi strategol ehangach o ran ynni. Mae’n amlwg hefyd nad yw rhai materion
mewn deisebau’n berthnasol i gynllunio a bod rhai eraill yn ymwneud a chyrff
rheoleiddio eraill megis Comisiwn y Cynllunio ar gyfer Isadeiledd a’i olynydd.
Mae hynny i gyd yn arwain at lawer o rwystredigaeth, wrth gwrs, am fod pobl
yn ei chael yn anodd dweud eu dweud neu’n teimlo bod eu pryderon wedi’u
diystyru pan fo’r awdurdod cynllunio lleol yn dweud nad ydyn nhw’n rhan o’i
orchwyl. Mae’n amlwg bod hynny’n amharu ar brosesau democrataidd lleol,
yn tanseilio hyder pobl yn nhrefn cynllunio’r wlad ac yn rhwystro trafodaeth
ddoeth am ddatrys problemau ynni rhag digwydd.

12. Felly, dylai dogfennau megis datganiadau Llywodraeth San Steffan am ei
pholisiau gyd-fynd a pholisiau a phrosesau Cymru, a dylai atebolrwydd
prosesau penderfynu’r DG trwy gyrff megis Comisiwn y Cynllunio ar gyfer
Isadeiledd a’r Grid Gwladol fod yn eglurach yng Nghymru.

13. Yn aml, yr unig adeg pan fo pobl yn cael cyflwyno eu sylwadau am isadeiledd
dadleuol yw proses asesu effeithiau awdurdod cynllunio lleol ar gyfer
adroddiad y bydd yn ei roi i’'r comisiwn. Bydd hynny’n arwain, yn aml, at
drafodaeth ffyrnig am bob cais penodol a llawer o drafferthion i gynghorwyr
lleol gan fod rhaid iddyn nhw gynrychioli barn eu cymunedau yn ogystal ag
ateb gofynion TAN 8 a pholisi ynni Cymru. Felly, rydyn ni’n croesawu’r
drafodaeth ehangach mae gwaith y pwyllgor hwn wedi’i sbarduno er mwyn
pwyso a mesur y prif faterion. Bydd penderfyniadau anodd o hyd ond rhaid i
bobl fod yn hyderus bod eu llais wedi’i glywed a bod eu pryderon wedi’u
cymryd i ystyriaeth.

Tudalen 4



14.

15.

16.

17.

Mae rhaglen ariannu Llywodraeth Cymru i alluogi awdurdodau cynllunio lleol i
fanteisio ar arbenigedd technegol wrth drin a thrafod ceisiadau ym maes ynni
yn un rydyn ni’n ei chroesawu gan y bydd yn effeithiol ar un lefel. Mae’n
cynnig cyfle i asesu cynnwys pob cais yn fanwl, yn annibynnol ac yn drylwyr ac
mae’n rhoi gwybodaeth fydd o les wrth drin a thrafod telerau’r cais. Hoffai
WLGA i’r cymorth barhau, ond hoffen ni i’r arbenigedd gael ei gymathu yny
sector cyhoeddus trwy drefniadau cydweithio yn hytrach na phenodi
ymgynghorwyr yn 6l yr angen. Mae hynny’n cyd-fynd a’r ddadl ehangach mae
Adolygiad Simpson wedi’i sbarduno.

Yn bwysicach fyth, mae argymhelliad 25 adroddiad y pwyllgor blaenorol yn
awgrymu y dylai Gweinidogion Cymru fod yn gyfrifol am ganiatau unrhyw
brosiectau fydd yn creu dros 50 Mw o ynni ac y dylai fod gofyn i
benderfyniadau yng Nghymru gydymffurfio a pholisi’r wlad hon yn hytrach na
datganiadau Llywodraeth San Steffan. Mae WLGA yn cefnogi’r safbwynt hwnnw
achos y bydd yn hwyluso ymateb mwy cydlynol, cyfun a chymesur. At hynny,
byddai modd datrys yn well y problemau mawr mae ffermydd gwynt yn eu
hachosi o ran cludiant.

Mae WLGA hefyd yn cefnogi’r egwyddor mae Chwyldro’r Carbon Isel -
Datganiad am y polisi ynglyn ag ynni (2010) wedi’i seilio arni fel sydd wedi’i
amlinellu yn rhagair y cabinet. Mae’n amlwg bod y newid hinsoddol yn
fygythiad mawr i’n cymunedau ni o hyd, ac mae lles y cymunedau hynny yn y
dyfodol yn dibynnu ar eu gallu i fod yn fwy cadarn o ran ynni trwy fanteisio ar
ffynonellau is eu carbon. Mae tlodi tanwydd yn dal yn broblem ledled Cymru
ac mae’r drefn sydd wedi’i disgrifio yn y datganiad o’r polisi yn ofyn sylfaenol.
Eto, mae hynny wedi’i adlewyrchu yn y ddeiseb am TAN 8 ac, yn wir, mae’n
hanfodol cymryd camau i arbed ynni. I'r perwyl hwnnw, mae mentrau yn y DG
a Chymru megis CERT/ECO, y Fargen Werdd ac ARBED yn apelio at
awdurdodau lleol, yn arbennig lle mae’r rhaglenni’n canolbwyntio ar leddfu
tlodi tanwydd. Rhaid canmol ARBED yn benodol am ei dull cyfannol ac
arloesol. Oherwydd cymhlethdod yr ariannu a’r amryw bolisiau am
effeithlonrwydd ynni ledled y DG, fodd bynnag, mae’n anodd i awdurdodau
lleol gael gafael ar arian i’w fuddsoddi yn eu cymunedau nhw, yn aml.

Mae’n anodd dadlau o blaid ffynonellau adnewyddadwy achos bod llawer o
adeiladau’n aneffeithlon o ran ynni. Mae trafodaeth ehangach ynglyn a pha
mor effeithiol yw’r buddsoddi ym mhob ardal a sut dylai gael ei flaenoriaethu.
Y gwir yw, fodd bynnag, bod angen cymryd camau i arbed ynni a chynhyrchu

Tudalen 5



18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

ynni carbon isel. Y cydbwysedd a’r amryw ffyrdd o wneud hynny yw’r materion
mae angen eu trafod.

Mae dulliau megis tariff bwydo i mewn a’r Fargen Werdd yn amlygu tlodi
tanwydd am fod y ddau’n mynnu gwariant ymlaen llaw gan ffafrio’r rhai a
chanddyn nhw ddigon o arian i’'w fuddsoddi. Mae WLGA yn cydweithio a
phartneriaid i weld a fydd yn bosibl defnyddio yng Nghymru rai dulliau sydd
wedi llwyddo yn Birmingham a Newcastle.

Felly, dylai prosiectau mawr ar gyfer ynni adnewyddadwy ystyried ffyrdd o
leddfu tlodi tanwydd yn rhan o’r agweddau fydd o les i’r gymuned.

Byddai’n ddymunol iawn hefyd pe bai buddion economaidd ynni carbon isel yn
cronni yng Nghymru ac, eto, mae’r awdurdodau lleol wedi cefnogi mentrau
megis ARBED am eu bod wedi ceisio hwyluso hynny trwy ddatblygu cadwyni
cyflenwi lleol. Bydd cam 2 ARBED, sy’n cael ei gychwyn ar hyn o bryd, yn
gwneud hynny, hefyd.

Yn sgil datblygu tariff bwydo i mewn ac anogaeth gwres adnewyddadwy,
ynghyd a newid trefn rheoli’r datblygu, mae llawer mwy o ffynonellau
adnewyddadwy bychain. Dylen ni groesawu a hybu hynny gan sbarduno
rhagor o drafod ac ymwybyddiaeth ymhlith ein cymunedau fel y daw’r
isadeiledd hwnnw’n rhan annatod o’n bywydau.

Mae’r datganiad o’r polisi am ynni’n dweud yn eglur nad ffynonellau
adnewyddadwy ar y tir yw’r unig ffordd o gynhyrchu ynni carbon isel. Mae
amryw ddulliau technegol ar wahanol adegau o’u datblygu, fodd bynnag.

Felly, bydd y farchnad yn parhau i lunio atebion bob yn dipyn. O ystyried suty
gallai hynny effeithio ar y biliau ynni, nid dadl ddamcaniaethol mo hon.

O edrych ar ehangder y materion sydd wedi’u disgrifio yn y datganiad ac sydd
wedi’u trafod yn fanylach yn Strategaeth Newid Hinsoddol Llywodraeth Cymru,
mae’n amlwg bod angen defnyddio pob ffordd addas o leddfu’r newid
hinsoddol. Gan fod ffermydd gwynt yn ddull tra datblygedig erbyn hyn, rhaid
parhau i’'w defnyddio dros y tymor byr a’r tymor canolig. Mae dadl barhaus
am effeithlonrwydd tyrbinau gwynt, ac mae rhaid mynd i’r afael a’u cost a’u
heffaith ar yr amgylchedd mewn modd y gall y cyhoedd fod yn hyderus ynddo.
Comisiwn y Datblygu Cynaladwy oedd yn cyfeirio’n trafodaethau cyhoeddus
gynt, ac mae angen cyflawni’r r6l honno o hyd.

Tudalen 6



24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

Gan na fydd y tyrbinau’n sefyll am byth, fodd bynnag, mae’n bosibl y bydd
pethau ac arnyn nhw olwg fyw deniadol yn cymryd eu lle nhw yn y pen draw.
Bydd pob dull yn effeithio ar gymunedau i ryw raddau, ac mae ynni o wastraff
yn dangos hynny’n dda.

Mae cynigion y datganiad o’r polisi am ynni wedi’u seilio ar ddeall
posibiliadau’r amryw ddulliau, pa mor hawdd a drud yw eu defnyddio a pha
isadeiledd y bydd ei angen er mwyn dod a’r ynni i gartrefi.

Y prif fater yw i ba raddau y bydd caniatad a phrosesau ym maes ynni’n cael
eu datganoli, pwy fydd yn gyfrifol am benderfyniadau a pholisiau o’r fath a
beth fydd y cyd-destun. Mae hynny wrth wraidd ymchwiliad y pwyllgor.

Mae’'r llythyr anfonodd y pwyllgor ar 2" Awst 2011 i amlinellu telerau’r
ymchwiliad yn codi nifer o faterion a chwestiynau. O achos natur helaeth y
cwestiynau hynny, mae rhai agweddau y tu hwnt i ffiniau gorchwyl WLGA.
Ynglyn a rhai meysydd eraill, bu’n anodd casglu tystiolaeth, a’r cwbl mae
modd ei wneud yw cynrychioli barn gyffredinol byd llywodraeth leol Cymru.

Felly, mae’n anodd inni bennu’n fanwl y goblygiadau i Gymru pe bai
Llywodraeth San Steffan yn cadw’r cyfrifoldeb am ganiatau i brosiectau ynni
mawr ar y tir a’'r mor fynd yn eu blaen. Rhaid ystyried tri safbwynt eang, fodd
bynnag. Mae pwysigrwydd trefn cynllunio a pholisiau Cymru mewn perthynas
a datganiadau Llywodraeth San Steffan o’i pholisiau yn hanfodol. O
flaenoriaethu sefyllfa’r deyrnas i gyd ar draul Cymru, fel sy’n digwydd ar hyn o
bryd, gallai fod yn wrthgynhyrchiol. Bydd y cynllunio strategol ar gyfer
isadeiledd ynni’n gymhleth ac yn ddryslyd, yn arbennig ym marn y cyhoedd.
Bydd yn anos cynllunio ar gyfer yr isadeiledd perthnasol hefyd, gan y bydd yn
anodd darogan holl effeithiau’r datblygu.

Gan fod diffyg cydlyniad, mae'n bosibl y bydd safleoedd nad ydyn nhw'n
ddelfrydol yn cael eu datblygu neu y bydd prosiectau'n anghymesur i alluogi'r
adeiladwr i ddewis un drefn yn hytrach nag un arall. All hynny ddim bod yn
addas nac yn briodol ac, yn y cyd-destun hwnnw, mae WLGA yn parhau i
gefnogi'r syniad mai Gweinidogion Cymru ddylai fod yn gyfrifol am
gymeradwyo ceisiadau ym maes ynni, ar yr amod y byddai'r awdurdodau
cynllunio lleol yn hollbwysig yn y prosesau penderfynu. Pe na bai hynny yn
digwydd, gallai problemau'r drefn bresennol barhau.

Mae targedau'r datganiad am y polisi ym maes ynni'n gymhleth achos bod

rhaid eu cyflawni trwy amrywiaeth o fudd-ddalwyr, cymorthdaliadau a dulliau
technegol. Yny bon, buddsoddwyr preifat sy'n pennu a ddaw cynigion i'r

Tudalen 7



31.

32.

33.

amlwg ac, felly, rhaid eu trin a'u trafod yn ofalus. Mae'r targedau'n arwydd
eglur i'r farchnad ynglyn a beth mae'r llywodraeth yn ei ddisgwyl, fodd bynnag,
a dylai hynny gyfeirio penderfyniadau am fuddsoddi gan roi sicrhad
ychwanegol i fuddsoddwyr bod Llywodraeth Cymru o blaid y math hwn o
ddatblygu ac i'r graddau hynny.

Gallai fod o gymorth cymharu'r modd mae isadeiledd trin gwastraff wedi'i
ddatblygu ledled Cymru. Ary cyd a'r awdurdodau cynllunio lleol, mae
Llywodraeth Cymru wedi sefydlu proses gydlynol a threfnus i ofalu bod gyda
ni'r isadeiledd y bydd ei angen i gyflawni nodau polisi Cymru yng nghyd-
destun deddfau a thargedau Undeb Ewrop. Yn ogystal &’r broses honno, fodd
bynnag, mae buddsoddi gan y sector preifat y tu hwnt i'r rhaglen, a gallai'r
buddsoddi hwnnw fynd rhagddo gyda chaniatad Comisiwn y Cynllunio ar gyfer
Isadeiledd a'i olynydd. Yn sgil hynny, mae goblygiadau i hyfywedd proses
strategol Cymru a barn y cyhoedd ynglyn a methu a chyfuno'r ddwy broses a'r
cynllunio ar eu cyfer. Mae'n amlwg y gallai problem debyg godi ei phen ynglyn
a rhoi caniatad i brosiectau ynni fynd yn eu blaen, yn arbennig yr effeithiau
fydd yn deillio o wahanol benderfyniadau yn y pen draw.

Mae Strategaeth Newid Hinsoddol Llywodraeth Cymru yn pennu sut bydd yn
cyflawni'r targed ynglyn a chwtogi ar garbon o 3% yn y meysydd mae'n gyfrifol
amdanyn nhw. Diau bod rhan o'r strategaeth wedi'i seilio ar dyb ynglyn a'r
modd y byddai polisiau'r DG, megis yr Ymrwymiad i Gwtogi ar Garbon, yn
effeithio ar Gymru a'r modd y byddai mentrau yng Nghymru yn cydblethu a
nhw. Mae Comisiwn y Newid Hinsoddol wrthi'n llunio adroddiad i'r Cynulliad
am hynt y targedau. Ynghyd ag adroddiad gan Bwyllgor y DG dros y Newid
Hinsoddol, bydd yr adroddiad hwnnw'n ategu adroddiad blynyddol
Llywodraeth Cymru am y cynnydd. Er y gallai polisiau a phenderfyniadau San
Steffan effeithio ar y bwriad i gwtogi ar garbon o 3%, mae'n anodd pennu i ba
raddau y bydd hynny'n digwydd ac a fydd yr effaith yn un dda neu ddrwg. Ar
bob golwg, fe fyddai'n briodol gofyn am farn Comisiwn y Newid Hinsoddol am
hynny a gofyn i'r Pwyllgor dros y Newid Hinsoddol drin a thrafod y mater yn ei
adroddiad i Lywodraeth Cymru.

Mae'n amlwg y bydd goblygiadau os nad yw penderfyniadau'n cydnabod cyd-
destun polisiau Cymru yn llwyr. Yn bennaf:

e Ble bydd y prosiectau a sut mae'u cydlynu (yn arbennig cydblethu a'r
prif brosiectau eraill ar gyfer isadeiledd).

Tudalen 8



34.

35.

36.

e Pa fath o dechnoleg sydd i'w ddefnyddio, ac i ba raddau, yn arbennig
lle mae math penodol wedi'i ddefnyddio'n ormodol mewn rhai
ardaloedd.

e Cyfuno prosiectau mae eisiau cyfraniadau ehangach arnyn nhw, a
gofalu bod isadeiledd i wneud hynny.

e Datblygu prosiectau mewn modd tameidiog ac anghydlynol, gan achosi
llawer o anghyfleustra i gymunedau.

e Barny cyhoedd, eu parodrwydd i oddef y broses a chamau i'w cynnwys
wrth ddod i benderfyniadau.

e Hwyluso buddion i gymunedau a gwireddu'r prif uchelgeisiau
cymdeithasol ac economaidd o ran swyddi 'gwyrdd' a chynaladwyedd
lleol.

Mae'r pwyllgor yn gofyn a ddylai TAN 8 gael ei adolygu bellach ac, yn wir, o
dderbyn y cyd-destun uchod, dyna gwestiwn rhesymol. Gan fod llawer o'r
pryderon yn ymwneud a ffactorau sydd heb fod dan reolaeth Llywodraeth
Cymru ar hyn o bryd, fodd bynnag, mae'n anodd gweld sut gallai adolygiad o'r
fath fynd i'r afael a nhw. Ery gallai gynnig cyd-destun newydd ar gyfer
penderfyniadau am ynni, yn arbennig o ran trafnidiaeth a'r isadeiledd ar ei
chyfer, fyddai'r adolygiad ddim yn trafod y mater craidd - sefyllfa'r cyfryw
bolisi mewn perthynas a datganiadau Llywodraeth San Steffan am ei pholisiau
a'r ffaith mai er lles y deyrnas i gyd mae penderfyniadau. Felly, er nad yw
WLGA yn erbyn adolygiad o'r fath, mae'n aneglur beth fyddai ei ddiben yny
cyd-destun hwn, yn arbennig gan fod rhai o agweddau TAN wedi'u hadolygu yn
ystod y tymor diwethaf.

Ynglyn a'r asiantaethau caniatau, mae'n amlwg bod y trefnau gwahanol yn
achosi problemau ac oedi. Mae hynny'n arbennig o wir lle mae mathau newydd
o dechnoleg yn cael eu defnyddio mewn broydd mae fframweithiau Undeb
Ewrop, megis rheoliadau cynefinoedd, yn eu diogelu. O sefydlu corff unffurf
dros yr amgylchedd, byddai modd osgoi hynny. Mae lle i bennu ffordd unffurf
o drin a thrafod ecosustemau hefyd, fel y gallwn ni drin a thrafod materion yn
gyfannol er lles cynefinoedd a bioamrywiaeth.

Er nad ydyn ni wedi arddel safbwynt am yr amryw fathau o ynni sydd wedi'u
cynnwys yn y datganiad am ynni, mae'n amlwg y bydd angen amryw fathau o
dechnoleg i gael economi isel ei garbon. Bydd y cyfrannau'n cael eu pennu
trwy'r modd cymhleth mae twf, proses datblygu'r dechnoleg a
phenderfyniadau ariannol budd-ddalwyr eraill yn ymwneud a'i gilydd. | ofalu
bod y cymysgedd yn hyfyw, fodd bynnag, mae'n amlwg y dylai Llywodraeth

Tudalen 9



37.

38.

Cymru barhau i gefnogi a hwyluso amrywiaeth helaeth o dechnoleg mewn
modd sy'n gwneud y gorau o'r buddion i Gymru.

Mae'n aneglur sut bydd hynny'n cyd-fynd a thargedau Llywodraeth Cymru
ynglyn a gollwng nwyon ty gwydr am eu bod yn ymwneud a sector cynhyrchu
ynni'r deyrnas ac mae'r sector hwnnw heb fod yn rhan uniongyrchol o
Strategaeth y Newid Hinsoddol, er y bydd buddion maes o law i breswylwyr, ym
maes trafnidiaeth (o ganlyniad i ddyfeisio cerbydau trydanol) ac yn y sector
cyhoeddus gan y bydd rhagor o ynni carbon isel ar gael. Fe fydd y buddion
hynny'n cael eu hadlewyrchu ledled y DG, fodd bynnag, yn y tybiaethau am yr
amryw fathau o ynni sydd ar gael i ddiwydiannau a chartrefi.

Bydd trafnidiaeth yn fater hollbwysig o hyd wrth ddatblygu rhai mathau o
dechnoleg.

Casgliad

39.

40.

Mae WLGA yn cefnogi'r bwriad i ddatblygu economi isel ei garbon yng Nghymru
mewn modd fydd yn manteisio i'r eithaf ar y buddion i gymunedau ledled y
wlad. Rydyn ni'n wynebu bygythiadau difrifol o ran y newid hinsoddol,
cynaladwyedd a chadernid ynni - yn ogystal a meini tramgwydd cymdeithasol,
economaidd ac amgylcheddol o bwys - ac mae rhaid mynd i'r afael a nhw yn
ddiymdroi. Rydyn ni wedi cefnogi cais Llywodraeth Cymru ynglyn a datganoli'r
cyfrifoldeb am adael i brosiectau ynni dros 50 Mw fynd yn eu blaen hefyd, fel y
bydd ffordd fwy strategol a chydlynol o gael yr isadeiledd hwn.

Mae'n amlwg bod rhaid i Gymru helpu'r DG i ddatrys y problemau hynny a
manteisio ar gyfleoedd i gynhyrchu ynni adnewyddadwy yn 6l natur ein
hinsawdd, ein gwlad a'r mor o'i hamgylch. Rhaid gwneud hynny ar y cyd a
phobl Cymru ac er eu lles, fodd bynnag.

Mae rhagor o wybodaeth gan:

Craig Mitchell

Swyddog Polisiau dros Faterion yr Amgylchedd, Ynni, y Newid Hinsoddol,
Bioamrywiaeth, Cynllunio, Dwr, Llifogydd a'r Mor

Cymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru
Ty Llywodraeth Leol

Rhodfa Drake

Caerdydd, CF10 4LG

Ffén: 029 2046 8600

Tudalen 10



Environment and Sustainability Committee
E&S(4)-11-11 paper 2

Powys County Council

Response to the National Assembly for Wales’ Environment and
Sustainability Committee’s inquiry into energy policy and planning in
Wales

1. Terms of engagement

1.1 Powys County Council (PCC) welcomes the opportunity to give evidence to
the National Assembly for Wales in this matter and thanks them for granting
an extension of time in this regard.

1.2 PCC understands that the Environment and Sustainability Committee will
consider how the current devolution arrangements for energy policy and
planning affect the delivery of the Welsh Government’s desired future ’energy
mix’ in Wales, as set out in ‘A Low Carbon Revolution — Energy Policy
Statement’ (2010) and the ‘UK Renewable Energy Roadmap’ (2011).

1.3 PCC understands that the inquiry will be framed by the following terms of
reference:

a. What are the implications for Wales if responsibility for consenting major
onshore and offshore energy infrastructure projects remains a matter that
is reserved by the UK Government?

b. How does this affect achievement of the Welsh Government’s aspirations
for various forms of renewable and low carbon energy as set out in the
Energy Policy Statement?

c. How does this affect delivery of the Welsh Government’s target for a 3 per
cent reduction in Green House Gas emissions per annum from 20117

d. What will be the impact if consenting decisions on major infrastructure
projects and associated development are not all taken in accordance with
Welsh planning policy?

1.4 Within these terms of reference, PCC understands that the issues that the
Committee will want to consider include:

a. The role of the different consenting agencies, how they inter-relate and
how the current system could be improved, both with and without further
devolution (Infrastructure Planning Commission, Planning Inspectorate,
Local Planning Authorities, National Parks, Welsh Government, Marine
Management Organisation, Environment Agency).

b. The relationship between the UK Government’s Energy National Policy
Statements and Welsh national and local planning policies (including
Planning Policy Wales, Technical Advice Note 8 and Local Development
Plans) and whether or not these policies can achieve the Welsh
Government’s aspirations, including whether or not a formal review of
TAN 8 is now required.

Powys County Council Tudadern 31  Evidence to NAW Env & Sus Cttee Sept 2011



c. The potential contribution and likelihood that different types of renewable
and low carbon energy (offshore wind, tidal, onshore wind, hydro-power,
nuclear, bio-energy/waste, micro-generation, community energy projects)
will be capable of delivering the Welsh Government’s aspirations for
energy generation as set out in A Low Carbon Revolution — Energy Policy
Statement and the UK Renewable Energy Roadmap.

d. The potential contribution of these different types of renewable energy to
meeting the Welsh Government’s annual target for Green House Gas
emission reduction.

e. The potential role of other forms of energy production in Wales e.g.
existing fossil fuel energy generation, proposed nuclear generation and
newer technologies such as coal-bed methane and shale gas.

f.  The transport issues relating to wind turbines and other forms of
renewable energy including their impact on roads, traffic and tourism.

1.5 PCC accepts that submissions do not need to address all the above areas.

1.6 PCC also understands that the Committee will be holding oral evidence
sessions in the autumn 2011 and that it would be helpful if an indication could
be given as to whether it would be prepared to give oral evidence, if invited.

2. Evidence

2.1 Whilst accepting that the inquiry has set itself a broad remit, Powys County
Council wishes to give evidence in relation to certain matters.

2.2 In essence, the position of Powys County Council is as set out in the minute
of its meeting held on Wednesday 29 June 2011, a copy of which is attached
at Appendix 1 as supplemented by the resultant letters to the Welsh
Government (WG) and the Department for Energy and Climate Change
(DECC), copies of which are attached at Appendices 2 and 3.

2.3 Replies to these letters are attached at appendices 4 and 5.

3. Materiality of TANS

3.1 One of the main issues now facing the Council in the light of the First
Minister’s statement made on 17 June 2011 and supplemented by the letter
of clarification written in July 2011 by the Minister for Environment and
Sustainable Development, John Giriffiths, is the scope for costly litigation over
the interpretation and weight to be given to Welsh Government policy as set
out in Planning Policy Wales (currently Edition 4, February 2011) and
Technical Advice Note (TAN) 8 — Renewable Energy (2005).

3.2 TANS is quite clear where it says that:
“The installed capacity targets are intended to assist the planning process
and are not to be seen as the definitive capacity for the areas. There may be

practical, technical and/or environmental reasons why the capacity may be
more or less than that indicated.”

Powys County Council -Felddajlen ]EX2dence to NAW Env & Sus Cttee Sept 2011



3.3 The First Minister’s statement says that:

“In our view the TAN 8 capacities should be regarded as upper limits and we
call upon UK Government to respect this position when they finalise the
Renewable Energy National Policy Statement and to not allow proliferation
when they take decisions on individual projects in Wales.

3.4 Subsequent to this, the letter from John Griffiths in July states:

The potential estimated in the Low Carbon Revolution Energy Policy
Statement was based on the maximum capacities that we considered
appropriate for the SSAs in Tan 8 in 2005. The maximum capacities of the
SSAs as provided for and referenced in TAN 8, were assessed by
independent consultants Garrad Hassan and provide for almost 1700
megawatts of onshore wind across all our SSAs. The remaining 300MW are
anticipated to come from a combination of developments under 25MW,
brownfield sites as well as community and local schemes and a contribution
from micro-generation. We remain committed to achieving this potential.

3.5 These figures are different to those set out in TANS.

3.6 Powys believes that the use by the Minister of the Garrad Hassan study to
argue for upper Strategic Search Area (SSA) limits, based on environmental
capacity, gives scope for challenge. Powys understands that Garrad Hassan
was commissioned to explore the extent of installed capacity that could
reasonably be produced from the SSAs using broad brush constraints, some
of which no longer exist. Powys believes that the study in no way assessed
overall environmental capacity as evidenced by the following extract:

"The work does not seek to pre-empt detailed on-ground studies that would
typically be undertaken by wind farm developers when assessing the sites.
Rather, it provides an informed view of the broad capacity limits of the areas
and the headline common factors which are likely to influence those limits...
The terms of reference did not include any input ...into the definition of the
SSA areas or any assessment of planning matters such as landscape
capacity."”

3.7 The simple fact is that, in short, it is for decision makers such as Powys
County Council to decide when environmental capacity has been reached
without being expected to be constrained by limits that are potentially flawed
as a concept.

3.8 Powys has already sought leading counsel’s advice on the weight to be given
to the First Minister’s statement in reporting planning applications to
Committee or responding to DECC/IPC. Counsel’s advice is that the
statement is of limited comfort and should be given only limited weight.

3.9 The current position is, therefore, one of considerable confusion. The
planning acts state that planning applications must be determined in line with
the Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
PPW augmented by TANS is demonstrably one such valid material
consideration, which Powys County Council as Local Planning Authority,
along with every other Welsh Council, will have to have proper regard to.

Powys County Council Tudaders 33  Evidence to NAW Env & Sus Cttee Sept 2011



3.10 It is well known that the planning process needs to weigh all material
factors into the balance. The position we find ourselves in with regard to
TANS8 and the apparently conflicting messages set out in the First Minister’s
statement and the letter from the Minister complicates the process for
developers and LPAs alike and gives rise to the potential for costly litigation.

3.11 In a nutshell, the national planning policy position has created the
antithesis of certainty, for all those involved in the process. This is
unacceptable and is one of the reasons why we as a County Council and one
that is significantly affected in this matter, has called for a complete review of
TANS8. The Welsh Government has refused to entertain such a review. We
believe that this is untenable.

3.12 Your inquiry poses the question as to whether or not these policies
can achieve the Welsh Government’s aspirations, including whether or not a
formal review of TAN 8 is now required.

Powys submits that a review of TANS is imperative if we are to move
forward with any certainty.

4. Welsh versus UK Government Policy

4.1 The UK National Policy Statements (NPSs) have now been finalised by
Parliament. These set out how decisions will be taken on a UK wide basis by
DECC and the IPC.

4.2 The Renewable Energy Infrastructure NPS (EN-3) makes a clear distinction
between the weight that should be attached to it and that of other policy such
as TANS8 and includes the following statement:

“Policy set out in existing planning guidance in England, and where a
proposal is located in Wales in planning policy and advice issued by the
Welsh Assembly Government relevant to renewables, will provide important
information to applicants of nationally significant energy infrastructure projects
(energy NSIPs). The IPC should have regard to these policies and expect
applicants to have taken them into account when working up their proposals.
Applicants should explain in their applications to the IPC how their proposals
fit with the guidance and support its targets or, alternatively, why they depart
from them. Whether an application conforms to the guidance or the targets
will not, in itself, be a reason for approving or rejecting the application.”

4.3 This statement is considered to represent a situation where UK policy would
demonstrably override Welsh policy. It can be seen, therefore, that the NPS
will be the main policy consideration to take into account, ahead of PPW and
TAN 8.

4 4 This is because, as with all material considerations, it is a matter for the
decision maker to weigh the issues in the balance and decide upon a
hierarchy based on the respective arguments and relative weight that can be
attributed to each consideration. Put simply, if a UK wide decision making
body (i.e., the IPC) is the decision maker, it is considered to be more likely
than not that UK policy will be considered ahead of Welsh policy.

Powys County Council -Felddajlen J=dence to NAW Env & Sus Cttee Sept 2011



4.5 Powys County Council believes that this is a very significant factor to consider
within the terms of your inquiry. There are two Strategic Search Areas that lie
wholly within Powys — SSAs B and C. The respective indicative targets for
each are 290MW and 70MW. Currently, there are five wind farms operational
in Powys with an installed capacity of 1056MW. The most recently approved
application is that at Tirgwynt that proposes a 27.6MW scheme. There are
presently 15 applications being considered by the Council that have the
potential to deliver an additional 894MW, 541.5MW in SSA B and 352.5MW in
SSAC.

4.6 When this figure is further disaggregated in terms of decision maker, the
equation is particularly revealing, as follows:

e Powys County Council — 304.5MW
e DECC/IPC - 589.5MW

4.7 On this basis, there is a clear issue to consider concerning the effectiveness
of Welsh policy as set out in PPW and TANS given the fact that the
overwhelming majority of proposed installed capacity through new wind farms
is likely to be determined by having greater regard for UK policy than Welsh

policy.

4.8 Your inquiry poses the question as to the role of the different consenting
agencies, how they inter-relate and how the current system could be
improved, both with and without further devolution making reference to the
IPC, PINS and LPAs amongst others. It also asks about the relationship
between the UK Government’s Energy National Policy Statements and Welsh
national and local planning policies and whether or not these policies can
achieve the Welsh Government’s aspirations.

Powys submits that there is a considerable question mark over the strength
and potency of Welsh policy in this regard which, if not addressed, could lead
to the current Welsh spatial approach to wind farm development being
replaced by a market led approach in determining where to site such large
scale renewable energy installations.

5. Other matters

5.1 Powys County Council believes that more emphasis should now be placed on
local, community based sources of renewable energy using local resources,
be it water, wind, solar or even Thorium. This is considered, in itself, to be a
further reason to review TAN8. Such an emphasis would have the same
desired effect of creating sustainable energy sources for communities whilst
reducing the need to pull power from the National Grid. In addition, it would
be unlikely to require the construction of significant substation installations
and lines of pylons through the north of the County, a matter that is causing
considerable concern and anxiety locally but one that will at some point have
to be presided over in a planning capacity by both the County Council and the
IPC.

5.2 Furthermore, without going into the efficiencies or otherwise of wind energy, it

is disappointing that a decision was made to not pursue the Severn Barrage
given that the energy produced there would arguably have been greater than

Powys County Council Tudadersdb  Evidence to NAW Env & Sus Cttee Sept 2011



the wind farms in Wales. In respect of the cost, it is arguable that the
construction of the Severn Barrage would be less than all the costs
associated with wind farm construction plus all the associated infrastructure
costs and potential ‘human’ cost to Welsh communities, economies and the
environment which the County Council will need to reconcile as part of its
planning responsibilities.

5.3 Powys believes that TANS, if it were considered as a stand alone document,
displays a disconnection in terms of strategic thinking. It would be a
reasonable proposition to consider that such matters as associated
infrastructure would have been part and parcel of the fabric of this strategic
policy. However, this is not readily apparent. For example, the identified SSAs
in Mid Wales are seemingly unrelated to available infrastructure and
necessary grid connection, hence the current proposals for a sizeable
substation and grid infrastructure.

5.4 Likewise, in itself, TAN8 does not address the possible continued disruption
to residents, businesses and communities during the construction phases.
Powys has previously identified somewhere in the region of 3,000 abnormal
loads passing through communities in this respect. Such abnormal loads will
cause inconvenience together with the potential for reduced business and
commercial activity. These are real issues that Powys will need to face up to
given the nature and extent of the road network in Mid Wales.

Powys asks the inquiry to look at the environmental, socio-economic,
community, health, ecological, transportation, cultural and cumulative impact
of wind farms and the necessary infrastructures and carries out a cost benefit
analysis of wind farm energy when compared to alternative sources of
renewable energy.

5.5 The Committee is also asked to consider the relationship between the
European Directive on Environmental Assessment embodied within Welsh
law by the relevant Statutory Instruments and the guidance contained within
TANS given that in any hierarchy, law will always take precedence. Whilst
Powys accepts that individual planning applications are and will be
accompanied by Environmental Statements made pursuant to the associated
regulations, there is nonetheless considered to be a question mark as to the
appropriateness of the policy within the context of the aforementioned
overarching Directive.

5.6 Powys accepts that such matters might reasonably be considered within the
mix when it comes to formally assessing each and every planning proposal.
However, the Committee is nonetheless invited to take advice and consider
this issue as part of its inquiry which may well aid the planning process further
down the line.

Powys asks the inquiry to consider the relationship between the European
Directive on Environmental Assessment and TANS.

6. Final remarks

6.1 As already mentioned, Powys County Council welcomes the opportunity to

engage in this debate and sincerely hopes that its evidence can be taken fully
into account in the Committee’s on-going deliberations.

Powys County Council -Felddajlen 1E6dence to NAW Env & Sus Cttee Sept 2011



6.2 To aid this process further, Powys County Council would be more than happy
to give oral evidence in the forthcoming sessions in the autumn as a means of
furthering the arguments and comments put forward and as a means of
providing any necessary clarity as to its position in this matter.

6.3 For the avoidance of any doubt, this consultation response does not purport
or seek to make any sort of assessment of the merits of national Welsh
planning policy as set out in PPW or TAN 8, nor does it seek to commence
any form of weighted consideration of TAN 8, in terms of any individual
planning proposal for Powys County Council as Local Planning Authority. This
will very much be a matter for individual planning applications and DECC/IPC
proposals as and when they come forward for consideration and
determination by the County Council.

County Councillor Graham Brown
For and on behalf of The Tan 8 Working Party representing Powys County
Council in this matter

September 2011

Powys County Council Tudadesy 37  Evidence to NAW Env & Sus Cttee Sept 2011



Powys County Council
Powys County Hall
LLANDRINDOD WELLS
Powys

LD15LG

29" July 2011

Mr John Griffiths AM
Minister for Environment &
Sustainable Development
Welsh Government
Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

CF99 1NA

Dear Sirs

By this letter, Powys County Council (“Powys”) calls on the Welsh Government to
carry out an immediate review of TAN 8 and to call a moratorium on all wind farm
applications, whether pending decisions or in pre-application stage, until the review
is completed.

In carrying out the review, Powys specifically asks the Welsh Government to
consider the environmental, socio economic, community, health, ecological,
transportation, cultural and cumulative impacts of the construction of wind farms and
the necessary infrastructures in rural Wales. Powys also asks that, in carrying out
the review, the Welsh Government carries out a cost-benefit analysis of wind farm
energy production when compared to alternative sources of energy.

The background to this request, and the reasons it is sought, are set out below.
TAN 8

Technical Advice Note 8 (“TAN 8”), “Planning for Renewable Energy”, was published
in July 2005 but remains material to the determination of planning applications by
local planning authorities such as Powys and to the giving of consultation responses
by local planning authorities such as Powys to the Infrastructure Planning
Commission (“IPC”) in relation to strategic energy projects of more than 50MW. lts
purpose, as stated in its paragraph 1.1, is to provide technical advice to supplement
the policy set out in Planning Policy Wales (“PPW”) and the Ministerial Interim
Planning Policy Statement (“MIPPS”), which itself amended PPW. PPW was
recently revised and was re-published in February this year.

Tudalen 18



The background to TAN 8 is set out in its paragraph 1.4: in order to meet UK-wide
targets, the Welsh Government concluded that an additional 800MW of additional
installed capacity was required from onshore wind sources.

Paragraph 2.2 explains that, in order to try to meet that target, the Assembly
Government (as it then was) commissioned extensive technical work from the
consultancy firm Arup which led to the conclusion that, for efficiency and
environmental reasons amongst others, large scale onshore wind developments
(defined as those over 25MW) should be concentrated into particular areas known
as Strategic Search Areas (“SSAs”). SSAs were identified through a variety of
means having been the subject of further detailed consideration in specially
commissioned research by the consultants Garrad Hassan in 2004. SSAs are shown
on a series of Maps in TAN 8. The Welsh Government will be aware that two of the
SSAs (Carno North and Newtown South) lie wholly within Powys’ area; one of the
SSAs (Nant-y-Moch) lies partly within it.

In respect of each of the SSAs, TAN 8 provides targets of installed capacity in MW.
Paragraph 2.5 explains that “although the Assembly Government has an established
target of 800MW of installed onshore capacity, Table 1 indicates that SSAs may be
capable of accommodating up to approximately 1120MW of additional capacity”.

From its publication, TAN 8 was intended to feed into the plan-making process at
local level. Section 5 of TAN 8 set out that the local implications of TAN 8 should be
incorporated into Local Development Plans (LDPs) in line with the requirements of
the LDP process. As it was put in paragraph 5.4 of TAN 8: “the SSAs for onshore
wind as identified on Maps 1-8 are of key importance to the achievement of energy
policy targets; they must be referred to in local development plans and, if refined,
incorporated into local development plan proposal maps”. Further advice was given
at Annex D. This set out a detailed “potential methodology” for undertaking a local
authority-led study of any of the SSAs.

The promise of a review

In One Wales — A progressive Agenda for the Government of Wales (2007), the
Welsh Government committed to review TAN 8 following production of an Energy
Route Map and an Assembly government Energy Strategy. The Route Map
published in 2008 reaffirmed the same commitment (see paragraphs 7.15 and 7.16
of the same). Paragraph 7.17 of the Route Map made clear why a review was so
necessary: “if all potential projects were to go ahead in full, wind-farms within the
TAN 8 strategic search areas could produce up to 2500MW of capacity: three times
the existing TAN 8 indicative target for 2010...”.

In light of the Government’s commitment to a review, the consultants Arup were
again commissioned in October 2009 to undertake a study that would provide an
evidence base to inform a revised planning policy framework for onshore wind
development in and around the SSAs. The research, published in June 2010, found
that proposals for some 2300MW of onshore wind were at that time under
consideration in and around the SSAs, almost all since the publication of TAN 8 in
2005. It further found that, based on knowledge of current project developments,

Tudalei 19



there appeared to be only the potential for around 300MW of additional development
in and around the SSAs.

The Welsh Government’s recent approach

On 17 June 2011, the First Minister made a written statement on the subject
“Planning for Renewable Energy in Wales”. In that statement, the First Minister said
that the indicative capacities set out in TAN 8 on 2005 reflected a considered view of
the potential impact of grid and transport connections but that, in a number of the
SSAs, developer interest had greatly exceeded those indicative figures. The First
Minister expressed the Welsh Government’s belief that “this level of development is
unacceptable in view of its wider impacts on the local area”. He went on: “in our view
the TAN capacities should be regarded as upper limits”.

The First Minister justified this approach on the basis that “the level of capacity
within the Strategic Search Areas ... set in 2005 would negate the need for the large
obtrusive pylons which are causing such concern ... It has always been our position,
as set out in our Energy Policy Statement, that such connections should be
delivered by less intrusive techniques, and as sensitively as possible, including the
use of undergrounding”.

The First Minister's statement has been followed this month by a letter to
stakeholders from Mr John Griffiths AM, Minister for Environment and Sustainable
Development, purporting to “provide further clarity on the issue of maximum
installation capacities for onshore wind within the Strategic Search Areas (SSAs)
identified in TAN 8 in 2005”. The letter sought to draw attention to passages in TAN
8 in which reference to underground cabling is made, and stated: “provided
development is limited to the maximum capacities above, we do not believe there is
a need for the large, visually intrusive, high voltage grid network infrastructure and
associated sub station of the kind proposed within Mid Wales ...".

Why a review and moratorium is now urgently required

In light of the above, two reasons in particular more than justify a review of TAN 8 as
it stands, and a moratorium on all wind farm applications across Wales and the rest
of the UK.

Firstly, through a combination of the fact that local planning authorities are currently
faced with proposals for capacity far exceeding that for which provision is made in
TAN 8, and the fact that TAN 8 expresses its capacities as “indicative” on its face,
TAN 8 provides a wholly inadequate means to control visually harmful development
such as that involving large numbers of over-ground pylons. In Powys’ view, much
more robust policy is required to avoid that problem. Only a review of TAN 8 can
achieve this, and pending that review a moratorium on all wind-farm applications
should be called so as to ensure that proposals are dealt with on a consistent basis
henceforth. It is Powys’ view that a review of this nature must be informed by a
comprehensive Strategic Environmental Assessment, with full consultation.

Secondly, although Powys agrees with the substance of the First Minister’s
concerns, it is unclear what the status of the First Minister's statement is in the

Tudalen 20



determination of planning applications. At most it is guidance on the interpretation of
pre-existing policy; it does not purport to replace (nor is Powys clear that it is capable
of replacing) TAN 8 itself. The First Minister’'s concerns can therefore only rationally
be addressed by a review of the policy.

A revised policy would no doubt be clearer than is TAN 8 currently on the
circumstances in which under-ground techniques should be regarded as mandatory.
But wind-farms are not just about electricity-generation with a visual impact. Powys
believes strongly that a review of TAN 8 should therefore involve a consideration of
the environmental, socio economic, community, health, ecological, transportation,
cultural or cumulative impacts of the construction of wind farms specifically and the
necessary consequential infrastructures in rural Wales. There should also be a full
cost-benefit analysis of wind farm energy production when compared to alternative
sources of energy. Only through a review of this scope will the Welsh Government
be in a position to produce guidance to local authorities in respect of planning within
SSAs which balances the undoubted need to address UK-wide renewable energy
targets with the need perceived by many to avoid the visual harm caused by over-
ground cabling arising specifically from wind-farm proposals.

The current regime creates uncertainty for developers and local authority planning
departments alike, and gives scope for costly litigation over the interpretation of —
and the weight to give - the competing and contradictory policies, advice notes,
guidance and ministerial statements. Until recently, planning officers have been
unaware of the “maximum capacity” now indicated. This adds complication to the
assessment and taking forward of applications for decision by the Council’s Planning
Committee and its recommendations to DECC and IPC.

Powys calls upon the Welsh Government to address these serious concerns as a
matter of urgency.

| should be grateful for your comprehensive response to this letter no later than
Friday 9 September 2011, following which Powys will further consider its position.

Yours faithfully

County Councillor W Barry Thomas
Chairman of Powys County Council

Tudalert 21



Powys County Council
Powys County Hall
LLANDRINDOD WELLS
Powys

LD15LG

29" July 2011

Mr Charles Hendry MP

Minister of State for Energy

Department of Energy & Climate Change
3 Whitehall Place

London

SW1A 2AW

Dear Sirs

Powys County Council (“Powys”) has called on the Welsh Government to carry out
an immediate review of TAN 8 and on the Welsh and UK Governments to call a
moratorium on all wind farm applications, whether pending decisions or in pre-
application stage, until the review is completed. In carrying out the review, Powys
has specifically asked the Welsh Government to consider the environmental, socio
economic, community, health, ecological, transportation, cultural and cumulative
impacts of the construction of wind farms and the necessary infrastructures in rural
Wales. It has also asked that, in carrying out the review, the Welsh Government
carries out a cost-benefit analysis of wind farm energy production when compared to
alternative sources of energy.

By this letter, Powys demands that the Department of Energy and Climate Change
("“DECC”), in the development of the National Policy Statement on Renewable
Energy Generation, ensures that within the policy, provision will be made to
guarantee that full consideration will be given to policies that exist in Wales, at
National, Welsh and Local Government level.

The need for flexibility in the NPS has become the more acute because of an
apparent change in position on the part of the Welsh Government as to the
interpretation of TAN 8.

By way of background, Technical Advice Note 8 (“TAN 8”), “Planning for Renewable
Energy”, was published in July 2005 but remains material to the determination of
planning applications by local planning authorities such as Powys and to the giving
of consultation responses by local planning authorities such as Powys to the
Department for Energy and Climate Change (“DECC”) and the Infrastructure
Planning Commission (“IPC”) in relation to strategic energy projects of more than

Tudalen 22



50MW. The background to TAN 8 is set out in its paragraph 1.4: in order to meet
UK-wide targets, the Welsh Government concluded that an additional 800MW of
additional installed capacity was required from onshore wind sources. Paragraph 2.2
explains that large scale onshore wind developments (defined as those over 25MW)
should be concentrated into particular areas known as Strategic Search Areas
(“SSAs”).

In respect of each of the SSAs, TAN 8 provides indicative targets of installed
capacity in MW. Paragraph 2.5 explains that “although the Assembly Government
has an established target of 800MW of installed onshore capacity, Table 1 indicates
that SSAs may be capable of accommodating up to approximately 1120MW of
additional capacity”.

On 17 June 2011, the Welsh First Minister made a written statement on the subject
“Planning for Renewable Energy in Wales”. In that statement, the First Minister said
that the indicative capacities set out in TAN 8 on 2005 reflected a considered view of
the potential impact of grid and transport connections but that, in a number of the
SSAs, developer interest had greatly exceeded those indicative figures. The First
Minister expressed the Welsh Government’s belief that “this level of development is
unacceptable in view of its wider impacts on the local area”. He went on: “in our view
the TAN capacities should be regarded as upper limits”. He justified this approach
on the basis that “the level of capacity within the Strategic Search Areas ... set in
2005 would negate the need for the large obtrusive pylons which are causing such
concern ... It has always been our position, as set out in our Energy Policy
Statement, that such connections should be delivered by less intrusive techniques,
and as sensitively as possible, including the use of undergrounding”.

In light of the above, Powys has written to the Welsh Government calling for a
review of TAN 8 as it stands. This is because, firstly, much more robust policy than
TAN 8 is required to control visually harmful development such as that involving
large numbers of over-ground pylons, and secondly because it is unclear what effect
or status the First Minister's statement can have in the determination of planning
applications.

Given the urgent need for a review, Powys considers that there is a consequential
need for a moratorium on all wind farm applications in Wales and the UK, and has
written to the Welsh and UK Governments to that effect.

Against the above background, Powys demands that DECC ensures provision is
made within the NPS on Renewable Energy Generation to guarantee that full
consideration will be given to policies that exist in Wales, at National, Welsh and
Local Government level. Powys further demands that DECC should ensure that the
amended policy be informed by a Strategic Environmental Assessment, with full
consultation.

The Welsh Government has made clear that it expects all decision-makers in Wales
(including the IPC or its successor, in the case of applications over the devolved
threshold) to recognise the spatially specific policy outlined in TAN 8 and to respect
the fact that the SSAs have a finite environmental capacity. For Welsh local
authorities, TAN 8 is material not only in devolved proposals of under 50MW but

Tudalenr 23



also in the giving of consultation responses to DECC and the IPC in other cases.
Unless the NPS allows DECC and the IPC sufficient flexibility to take account of
Welsh policy, conflict will arise, especially given the Welsh First Minister’s recent
statement encouraging local planning authorities to apply the capacities in TAN 8 as
maxima. At the very least, the current uncertainty over TAN 8 in Wales can only
reinforce the need for flexibility in the NPS.

| should be grateful for your comprehensive response to this letter no later than

Friday 9 September 2011, following which Powys will further consider its position.

Yours faithfully

County Councillor W Barry Thomas
Chairman of Powys County Council

Tudalen 24



I, (~
. Er
John Griffiths AC /AM N / (ﬁ

Gweinidog yr Amgylchedd a Datblygu Cynaliadwy -
Minister for Environment and Sustainable Development - ;}L)

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Ein cyf/Our ref JG/05929/11

County Councilior W Barry Thomas
Powys County Council

County Hall

Llandrindod Wells

Powys

LD15LG

7~ August 2011

Qee~r— S@\,w\ \

Thank you for your letter of 29th July calling on the Welsh Government to carry out a review
of Technical Advice Note 8 and to introduce a moratorium on all wind farm applications.

In responding to your request it is important that | put TAN 8 into context in relation to other
Government policies and to provide an explanation of what the TAN seeks to achieve.

The UK is subject to the requirements of the EU Renewable Energy Directive. This includes
a UK target of 15% of energy from renewables by 2020. The UK Renewable Energy
Strategy (2009) and the UK National Renewable Energy Action Plan (2010) sets the path
for the delivery of these targets, promoting renewable energy to reduce global warming and
to secure future energy supplies.

The Welsh Government is committed to playing its part by delivering an energy programme
which contributes to reducing carbon emissions as part of an approach to tackling climate
change. The Welsh Government's Low Carbon Energy Policy Statement (2010) sets out our
energy policy and identifies the sustainable renewable energy production aspiration of
29TWhr by 2020 through the strengthening of renewable energy production from a variety
of different technologies. These include onshore and offshore wind, biomass (electricity),
tidal range, tidal stream/wave. local electricity generation (mainly PV/wind/hydro). The Low
Carbon Energy Policy Statement demonstrates that onshore wind power offers the greatest
potential for an increase in the generation of renewable energy in the short to medium term
and that it continues to offer the greatest potential for strategic scale renewable energy
generation.

The Low Carbon Energy Policy Statement explains the Welsh Government's aim by 2050,
at the latest, to be in a position where almost al| of our local energy needs can be met by
low carbon electricity production. The approach is to reduce energy consumption and
iImprove energy efficiency first and maximise renewable and low carbon energy generation
at every scale across Wales. This is part of a concerted effort to tackle climate change in
Wales.

Bae Caerdydd + Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd « Cardiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
CF99 1NA Correspondence.John.Griffiths@wales.gsi.gov.uk
Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchu (100%) Printed on 100% recycled paper

Tudalen 25



The Welsh Government's energy policy recognises the importance of a mixture of
renewable energy technologies. However, onshore wind energy in the short term offers the
greatest potential for an increase in the generation of electricity from renewable energy and
it is at the present time one of the most commercially viable sources of renewable energy
available and it is right that we plan positively for it.

Qur planning policy as set out in Planning Policy Wales and supported by Technical Advice
Note 8 seeks to facilitate the delivery of the Welsh Government'’s renewable energy policy
and establishes a framework for local planning authorities to produced Local Development
Plans, and is a material consideration for individual planning applications. You will be aware
that we reviewed our over-arching planning policy for renewable energy in February this
year and alongside this we issued a letter which factually updated TAN 8.

As a consequence the 800MW target for 2010, to which you refer in your letter has been
superseded by the Low Carbon Energy Policy Statement. Nevertheless, the Strategic
Search Area based approach to large scale onshore wind remains as a basic principle of
TAN 8. The Strategic Search Areas were derived following independent technical
assessment of the most suitable areas for large scale wind development and the intention of
planning policy is to restrict the proiiferation of large scale wind farm developments to a
limited number of sites in the uplands of Wales whilst trying to address the immediate
challenge presented by climate change. There are large areas of Wales that are excluded
from consideration as Strategic Search Areas by features that militate against large wind
farm developments. In particular, large wind farm developments in Wales' three National
Parks and designated Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty, would be contrary to planning
policy.

Wales has an abundant wind resource which, combined with the generous financial support
offered by the UK Government, means that it is inevitable that developers will continue to
promote and seek to construct large scale wind farms in Wales. Without the strategic
approach offered in TAN 8 there is a danger that wind farms would be scattered across the
whole of Wales in an uncoordinated way, and | believe that TAN 8 offers the best way
forward to meet our obligations whilst at the same time protecting much of upland Wales.

My colleague the First Minister issued a Written Statement on 17" June which set out the
Welsh Government'’s view that we must continue to plan positively for large scale wind
developments but that the current level of developer interest in some Strategic Search
Areas exceeded what was originally anticipated when TAN 8 was conceived. Whilst TAN 8
recognises that in Mid and North Wales the Grid capacity would require reinforcement in
order to deliver the outputs of some of the Strategic Search Areas, we believe that it is this
overcapacity which has brought about National Grid’s current proposals for Grid
reinforcement in Mid Wales, and the Welsh Government has made its views clear on the
unacceptability of the scale of these proposals.

My letter, published on the Welsh Government's website last month, clarifies that are
maximum outputs for each of the Strategic Search Areas which we believe should not be
exceeded and we have called on all decision making bodies to respect this view. We remain
fully committed to the principles of TAN 8 and therefore will not be undertaking a pre-
emptive review of the TAN. Neither can | support your call for an all Wales moratorium on
wind farm applications.

In discharging the planning service in Wales both the Welsh Government and local planning
authorities have a duty to make planning decisions in a timely way. TAN 8 does not
preclude local planning authorities from refusing wind farm applications in Strategic Search
Areas and | believe that any moratorium would lead to uncertainty within the wind power
industry and also for the people of Wales. It would also hinder local planning authorities
seeking to bring forward Local Development Plans in Wales.

Tudalen 26



John Griffiths AC / AM
Gweinidog yr Amgylchedd a Datblygu Cynaliadwy
Minister for Environment and Sustainable Development

Tudalen 27



15 5

M E (:Hm\tcf:

Charfes Hendry MP

Minister of State

Depantment of Energy 8 Climate Change
3 Whitehali Place
County Councillor W Barry Thomas London
Chairman of Powys County Council SW1A zaw
Powys County Council
Powys County Hall
Llandrindod We’ls Qur ref: 12 04 00 04.43C
Powys
LD1 5LG

At ddens g

(P September 2011

Jeot Oy, Taomas,

Thank you for your letters of 29 July 2011 addressed to myself, my colleague, the
Secretary of State for the Environment, Food and Rural Affairs and the Permanent
Secretaries for DECC and DEFRA.

In respect of your request that the UK Government gives full consideration to policies
that exist in Wales, at national, Welsh and local government level in the National Policy
Statement ("NPS") for Renewable Energy ("EN3"), you will be aware that the Secretary
of State designated the six National Policy Statements for Energy ("NPSs”) on 19 July

2011 EN 3 sets out the relationship between the National Policy Statements and
Welsh renewables policy quite clearly

“Policy set out in existing planning guidance in England, and where a proposal is
localed in Wales in planning policy and advice issued by the Welsh Assembly
Govemment relevant to renewables, will provide important information to
apphcants of nationally significant energy infrastructure projects (energy NSIPs).
The IPC should have regard to these policies and expect applicants {o have
taken them into account when working up their proposals Applicants should
explain in their applications to the IPC how their proposals fit with the guidance
and support its targets or, alternatively, why they depart from them. Whether an
application conforms lo the guidance or the targets will not in itself. be a reason
for approving or rejecting the apphcation " (EN3 -2 2 1)

In respect of planning policies at the local level. the Overarching National Policy
Statement (EN 1) states:

‘Other malters that the IPC may consider both important and relevant to its
decision-making may inclucle Development Plan Documents or other documents
in the Local Development Framework In the event of a conflict between these or
any other documents and an NPS, the NPS prevails for purposes of IPC decision

Tudalen 28



making given the national significance of the infrastructure, The energy NPSs
have taken account of relevant Planning Policy Statements (PPSs) and olde:-
style Planning Policy Guidance Notes (PPGs) in England and Technical Advice
Notes (TANs) in Wales where appropriale.” (EN1 - 4 1.5)

This remains an accurate description of the intended relationship between national,

Welsh and local planning policy and the Government has no intention to revise this
aspect of the national policy statements.

In respect of your call for the Welsh Government ("WG") to carry out an immediate
review of Technica! Advice Note 8; Planning for Renewable Energy ("TAN 8"), | would
like to make it clear that planning policy is a devolved matter in Wales and any decision

on whether to review TANS is entirely a matter for the Welsh Government rather than
the UK Government.

The guidance in TAN8 or any revision or successor would be a material consideration
(or in the language of the Planning Act, a “relevant and important matter” to which
regard is to be had) in any decision that the Secretary of State may take on an
application for consent but it would not bind his decision-making. The same goes for
any subsequent commentary or revision that the Welsh Government choose to make on
TANB. If the WG decides to embark on a review of TAN8, planning applications would
be expected to take into account the most recently published version of relevant
planning policy (or any consultation version of the policy giving due weight to
consultation status) pending the outcome of the review. In our view it is not to be
expected that planning applications should be suspended while the review is being
conducted, any more than we would expect that applications under the Planning Act
should be suspended pending review of a National Policy Statement. or applications to
a local planning authority should be suspended pending work on a local plan — unless
the applicant so requests. Consequently the UK Government does not intend to impose
a moratorium on wind farm applications either in Wales or more widely and neither will it
be holding in abeyance those applications for consent for which it is directly responsible.

Furthermore, whilst | acknowledge the situation in respect of applicatians for consent for
wind farms in mid-Wales is complex, | am keen to ensure that the planning applications
do not take any longer than is absolutely necessary to complete. Continued uncertainty
in this matter 1s not in the interests of anyone — that includes both the applicants and
local people. Whilst | would not seek to question the commitment of Powys County
Council ("Powys CC") to providing DECC with timely responses in respect of the
applications for consent made under S36 of the Electricity Act 1989, and | fully
understand the reasans why you have been unable to respond so far. | fear that your

call for a moratorium will nol increase confidence that these applications will be
completed within a reasonable timeframe.

Therefore having carefully considered the current status of the S36 applications and

the proposed timeframes for taking applications to Powys CC's planning commitlee as
set out in the helpful letter of 1 June 2011 from Powys CC's Specialist Service Manager.
| have concluded that, in order to reassure all parties to the applications that they will be
determined in a timely manner, | request that Powys CC returns completed Forms B in
respect of the applications for consent under S36 of the Electricity Act 1989. thereby
indicating whether or not it objects to them. by 31 March 2012 at the latest

Tudalen 29



I 'am copying this letter to John Griffiths AM (Welsh Government), Simon Christian
(CeltPower), Vanessa Clipstone (Fferm Wynt Llaithddu Cyf), Chnstopher Morns (Nuon
UK). Richard Evans (RES UK & Ireland) Jeremy Smith (Npower Renewables). and
Terry Hill (Independent Power System)

th -
OIXS Sincoeny

P

\\
( N LOJ"*kiw‘b‘ﬂ

CHARLES HENDRY

Tudalen 30



	Agenda
	2 Ymchwiliad i bolisi ynni a chynllunio yng Nghymru - Tystiolaeth gan Gymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru ac awdurdodau lleol
	Papur 2 (Saesneg yn unig)


